

Project	IEEE 802.16 Broadband Wireless Access Working Group < http://ieee802.org/16 >	
Title	Clarification on CID allocation message	
Date Submitted	2007-07-18	
Source(s)	Aik Chindapol, Jimmy Chui Siemens Corporate Research	aik.chindapol@siemens.com
	Shashikant Maheshwari, Yousuf Saifullah, Haihong Zheng, Adrian Boariu, Peter Wang Nokia Siemens Networks	shashikant.maheshwari@nsn.com
Re:	This is in response to the call for comments	
Abstract	Clarification on CID allocation message	
Purpose	Review and adopt	
Notice	<i>This document does not represent the agreed views of the IEEE 802.16 Working Group or any of its subgroups. It represents only the views of the participants listed in the "Source(s)" field above. It is offered as a basis for discussion. It is not binding on the contributor(s), who reserve(s) the right to add, amend or withdraw material contained herein.</i>	
Release	The contributor grants a free, irrevocable license to the IEEE to incorporate material contained in this contribution, and any modifications thereof, in the creation of an IEEE Standards publication; to copyright in the IEEE's name any IEEE Standards publication even though it may include portions of this contribution; and at the IEEE's sole discretion to permit others to reproduce in whole or in part the resulting IEEE Standards publication. The contributor also acknowledges and accepts that this contribution may be made public by IEEE 802.16.	
Patent Policy	The contributor is familiar with the IEEE-SA Patent Policy and Procedures: < http://standards.ieee.org/guides/bylaws/sect6-7.html#6 > and < http://standards.ieee.org/guides/opman/sect6.html#6.3 >. Further information is located at < http://standards.ieee.org/board/pat/pat-material.html > and < http://standards.ieee.org/board/pat >.	

Clarifications on CID Allocation message

Introduction

In the embedded path management scheme, CID_ALLOC-IND is used to notify RS of the systematic allocation of CID. However, no acknowledgement mechanism is currently specified and the MR-BS does not know whether the RS has correctly received the message. This contribution specifies the response mechanism for the CID allocation message.

Specification changes – Remedy 1

[Change the following rows in Table 38 in section 6.3.2.3 as follows]

Table 38 – MAC Management messages

Type	Message name	Message description	connection
70	CID_ALLOC- INDREQ	CID allocation <u>request</u> message	Basic
XX	<u>CID_ALLOC-RSP</u>	<u>CID allocation response message</u>	<u>Basic</u>

[Change subclause 6.3.2.3.65 as follows]

6.3.2.3.65 RS CID Allocation ~~Indication~~ Request (CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~) message

The CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ message may be transmitted by the MR-BS to the RS during network entry/re-entry processes. When the network topology is changed or CID (re-)allocation is required, the MR-BS may also transmit this message to related RSs to update CIDs. Upon receiving CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~, the RS shall (re-)configure CID allocation accordingly. The message format is shown in Table ~~XX~~ 183d.

Table 183d CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ message format

Syntax	Size	Note
CID_ALLOC- INDREQ _Message_Format() {		
Management Message Type (70)	8 bits	
<u>Transaction ID</u>	<u>16 bits</u>	
CID_Alloc_method	3 bits	0 : contiguous method 1 : bit partition method 2-7 : reserved
CID_type	3 bits	0: basic CID 1: primary CID 2: T-CID 3: MT-CID 4-7: reserved
If (CID_Alloc_method = =0) {		
Start number of CID	16 bits	Starting point of the CID number
End number of CID	16 bits	End point of the CID number
}		

If (CID_Alloc_method = =1) {		
New CID for the RS	16 bits	
Hop count	8 bits	The new hop count of the RS to the MR-BS
K_Code	8 bits	The new maximum number of subordinate RSs that a RS could have
}		
}		

The following parameter shall be included in the message:

Transaction ID

Unique identifier set by the sender for identifying this transaction.

The CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ shall contain the following TLVs:

HMAC/CMAC Tuple (see 11.1.2)

The HMAC/CMAC Tuple attribute contains a keyed message digest (to authenticate the sender).

The HMAC Tuple attribute shall be the final attribute in the CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ message's attribute list.

[Insert the following subclause into section 6.3.2.3]

6.3.2.3.xx RS CID Allocation Response (CID_ALLOC-RSP) message

After successfully receiving the CID_ALLOC-REQ message sent on RS' basic CID, the RS shall transmit the CID_ALLOC-RSP message on its basic CID to the MR-BS to acknowledge that it received information about the CID allocation.

Table XX CID_ALLOC-RSP message format

<u>Syntax</u>	<u>Size</u>	<u>Note</u>
<u>CID_ALLOC-RSP Message Format() {</u>		
<u> Management Message Type (TBD)</u>	<u>8 bits</u>	
<u> Transaction ID</u>	<u>16 bits</u>	
<u> }</u>		

The following parameter shall be included in the message:

Transaction ID

Transaction ID from the corresponding CID_ALLOC-REQ message.

The CID_ALLOC-RSP shall contain the following TLVs:

HMAC/CMAC Tuple (see 11.1.2)

The HMAC/CMAC Tuple attribute contains a keyed message digest (to authenticate the sender).

The HMAC Tuple attribute shall be the final attribute in the CID_ALLOC-RSP message.

[Change the first paragraph in subclause 6.3.9.16.4.1 as follows]

6.3.9.16.4.1 CID pre-allocation to localized RS

The MR-BS may allocate a part of management CID range systematically or non-systematically to its subordinate RS by using CID_Alloc-~~INDREQ~~ messages. Systematic range assignment means each superordinate RS has a range as the superset of the union of CIDs of all its subordinate RSs. Systematical CID

allocation could embed network topology into CIDs to help RSs to find routing paths without storing all CIDs of subordinate RSs in the routing table.

[Change the first paragraph in subclause 6.3.9.16.4.2 as follows]

6.3.9.16.4.2 MS network entry procedure for localized non-transparent RS

This MS network entry process is almost same as described in 6.3.9.16.2.1, except that RS is assigned range of management CIDs by its super-ordinate node in advance. This section states that the RS assigns the management CIDs to its subordinate nodes (MS or RS) during initial ranging process. RS may pre-allocate CID range to subordinate RS using CID_Alloc-~~INDREQ~~ messages on behalf of the MR-BS.

[Change the first paragraph in section 6.3.25.1 as follows]

6.3.25.1 Embedded Path Management for Relay

When the systematic CID allocation is used, the MR-BS shall update the CID range assigned to its subordinate RSs via the CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ message. There are two CID assignment methods: contiguous integer blocks as in Figure ~~xxx-157~~ (a) and bit partition as in Figure ~~xxx-157~~ (b). In the bit partition assignment, the MRBS sets the lowest k bits in ascending order to RSs for RSs associated to the MR-BS directly where the maximum number of RSs the MR-BS or a RS could serve is 2^k . For other level-n RSs, which need n hops to reach the MR-BS, the MR-BS left shifts k bits of its parent CID and sets the lowest k bits according to the arriving sequence of the RS.

Specification changes – Remedy 2

[Change the following rows in Table 38 in section 6.3.2.3 as follows]

Table 38 – MAC Management messages

Type	Message name	Message description	connection
70	CID_ALLOC- INDREQ	CID allocation request message	Basic

[Change subclause 6.3.2.3.65 as follows]

6.3.2.3.65 RS CID Allocation ~~Indication~~ Request (CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~) message

The CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ message may be transmitted by the MR-BS to the RS during network entry/re-entry processes. When the network topology is changed or CID (re-)allocation is required, the MR-BS may also transmit this message to related RSs to update CIDs. Upon receiving CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~, the RS shall (re-

) configure CID allocation accordingly [and use the generic ACK message as defined in 6.3.2.3.xx to acknowledge that it received information about the CID allocation.](#) The message format is shown in Table ~~XX~~ 183d.

Table 183d CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ message format

Syntax	Size	Note
CID_ALLOC- INDREQ _Message_Format() {		
Management Message Type (70)	8 bits	
Transaction ID	16 bits	
CID_Alloc_method	3 bits	0 : contiguous method 1 : bit partition method 2-7 : reserved
CID_type	3 bits	0: basic CID 1: primary CID 2: T-CID 3: MT-CID 4-7: reserved
If (CID_Alloc_method = =0) {		
Start number of CID	16 bits	Starting point of the CID number
End number of CID	16 bits	End point of the CID number
}		
If (CID_Alloc_method = =1) {		
New CID for the RS	16 bits	
Hop count	8 bits	The new hop count of the RS to the MR-BS
K_Code	8 bits	The new maximum number of subordinate RSs that a RS could have
}		
}		

[The following parameter shall be included in the message:](#)

[Transaction ID](#)

[Unique identifier set by the sender for identifying this transaction.](#)

The CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ shall contain the following TLVs:

HMAC/CMAC Tuple (see 11.1.2)

The HMAC/CMAC Tuple attribute contains a keyed message digest (to authenticate the sender).

The HMAC Tuple attribute shall be the final attribute in the CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ message's attribute list.

[Change the first paragraph in subclause 6.3.9.16.4.1 as follows]

6.3.9.16.4.1 CID pre-allocation to localized RS

The MR-BS may allocate a part of management CID range systematically or non-systematically to its subordinate RS by using CID_Alloc-~~INDREQ~~ messages. Systematic range assignment means each superordinate RS has a range as the superset of the union of CIDs of all its subordinate RSs. Systematical CID

allocation could embed network topology into CIDs to help RSs to find routing paths without storing all CIDs of subordinate RSs in the routing table.

[Change the first paragraph in subclause 6.3.9.16.4.2 as follows]

6.3.9.16.4.2 MS network entry procedure for localized non-transparent RS

This MS network entry process is almost same as described in 6.3.9.16.2.1, except that RS is assigned range of management CIDs by its super-ordinate node in advance. This section states that the RS assigns the management CIDs to its subordinate nodes (MS or RS) during initial ranging process. RS may pre-allocate CID range to subordinate RS using CID_Alloc-~~INDREQ~~ messages on behalf of the MR-BS.

[Change the first paragraph in section 6.3.25.1 as follows]

6.3.25.1 Embedded Path Management for Relay

When the systematic CID allocation is used, the MR-BS shall update the CID range assigned to its subordinate RSs via the CID_ALLOC-~~INDREQ~~ message. There are two CID assignment methods: contiguous integer blocks as in Figure ~~xxx-157~~ (a) and bit partition as in Figure ~~xxx-157~~ (b). In the bit partition assignment, the MRBS sets the lowest k bits in ascending order to RSs for RSs associated to the MR-BS directly where the maximum number of RSs the MR-BS or a RS could serve is 2^k . For other level-n RSs, which need n hops to reach the MR-BS, the MR-BS left shifts k bits of its parent CID and sets the lowest k bits according to the arriving sequence of the RS.